





Contents

Scope	4
Approval of Academic Regulations	4
Strategic Approach	4
Regulatory Context	4
Taking a Strategic Approach to Managing Quality and Standards	5
Alignment with Walsall College iCARE Values	6
Engaging Students as Partners	6
Walsall College Student Voice Strategy	7
Harassment and Sexual Misconduct Prevention	8
Freedom of Speech	9
Attendance and Participation	9
Resourcing Delivery of a High-Quality Learning Experience	10
Evaluating Quality and Standards	11
Using Data to Inform and Evaluate Quality	11
Monitoring, Evaluating and Enhancing Provision	11
Engaging in External Review and Accreditation	12
External Examining	13
Annual Assessment Boards	13
Implementing the Approach to Quality Enhancement and Standards	14
Designing, Developing, Approving and Modifying Programmes	14
Recruiting, Selecting and Admitting Students	16
Applications	16
Entry Requirements	17
Modes of Study	18
Enrolment and Registration	18
Payment of Fees and Other Charges	18
Interruption of Enrolment and Changes to Registration	19
Student Protection Plan	19
Supporting Students to Achieve their Potential	20
Teaching, Learning and Assessment	21
Recognition of Prior Learning	24
Assessment of Students	24





Authenticity and Authentication	25
Assessment and AI (Artificial Intelligence)	26
Formative Assessment	26
Summative Assessment	26
Grading Higher National Units	26
Meeting Deadlines	27
Internal Verification of Assessment Decisions	27
Communication of Results	27
Operating Concerns, Complaints and Appeals Processes	28
nformation about Higher Education Provision	20





Scope

These Academic Regulations set out how Walsall College delivers, assures, and enhances its Higher Education (HE) provision. They apply to all our Higher Technical Qualifications (HTQs), Level 4 Higher National Certificates (HNCs), Level 5 Higher National Diplomas (HNDs), and where appropriate, Level 6 Top-Up qualifications taught at Walsall College. Each qualification is regulated by Ofqual. Where a programme is delivered in partnership with a validating University, the Academic Regulations of that institution will take precedence, with Walsall College's Academic Regulations supporting and complementing them. This ensures that all students studying with us experience the distinctive support and vocational focus that the characterises Higher Education at Walsall College.

Where not specified, all Pearson courses are classified as full-time study, with an option to study part-time.

Approval of Academic Regulations

These regulations are formally approved by the Senior Management Team and the HE Academic Board. They are reviewed annually to ensure they remain aligned with OfS requirements, QAA guidance, and the wider Higher Education sector. Updates may be made at any point to reflect regulatory changes or to embed best practice. This commitment to regular review ensures that our HE provision at Walsall College continues to deliver the highest standards of quality, support, and opportunity for all of our students.

The College reserves the right to amend the Academic Regulations at any time, as it considers appropriate.

Strategic Approach

Regulatory Context

Walsall College operated within the National Regulatory Framework for Higher Education in England and is registered with the **Office for Students (OfS)**. The OfS require us to meet conditions of registration, which underpin the quality and standards of our HE provisions. For example, **Condition B1** requires us to deliver programmes that are coherent, academically challenging, and effectively taught, enabling our students to progress successfully. **Condition B2** requires use to provide the resources, supporting and opportunities that allow students to thrive, while **Condition B3** focuses on ensuring that our students achieve position continuation, completion, and progression outcomes. Our assessments are conducted under **Condition B4**, which requires them to be reliable, fair, and valid, and all our qualifications meet **Condition B5**, which ensures that they are consistent with sector-recognised standards.

While the OfS sets the baseline requirements, Walsall College goes further by aligning our work with the QAA UK Quality Code for Higher Education (2024). This framework provides principles of good practice, which we use to benchmark and enhance our activity. We also design and review our programmes against the Framework for Higher Education Qualifications (FHEQ) and the Regulated Qualifications Framework (RQF). This ensures that our awards are nationally recognised, support graduate employability, and meet the expectations of both employers and universities.





Taking a Strategic Approach to Managing Quality and Standards

Academic Standards relate to the achievements represented by Higher Education Qualifications and how the standards are secured. These are set and maintained within UK Higher Education through the Framework for Higher Education Qualifications (FHEQ). Threshold Academic Standards are the minimum acceptable level of achievement that a student must demonstrate to be eligible for an academic award.



Academic Standards and the quality of the student learning experience are the responsibility of Walsall College. Degree-Awarding Organisations are aware that they have ultimate responsibility for the qualifications offered in their name. Walsall College's Quality Team will support the implementation and monitoring of high-quality teaching and learning standards to support this.

The Strategic Approach is employed wherever and however the provision is delivered and is embedded in the culture and practices of Walsall College.

Walsall College's Strategic Approach to securing academic standards, quality assurance and enhancement is published, communicated clearly and accessible to all staff, students, and external stakeholders. It is supported

by a comprehensive and transparent governance framework. This approach is monitored and evaluated on an annual basis. The College recognises the importance of external expertise in relation to the Strategic Approach to managing quality and standards.

The frameworks for Higher Education qualifications are supported and contextualised by subject benchmark statements. These national frameworks are maintained by Office for Students whom are also responsible for quality assuring their use. Subject benchmark statements are used to set out the nature and characteristics of higher - level qualifications and the outcomes graduates are expected to achieve in specific subject areas.

The Office for Students are the independent regulator of Higher Education in England. Their purpose is to ensure that every student, irrespective of their background, has a fulfilling experience of Higher Education that enriches their lives and careers. Their work covers all students whether undergraduate or postgraduate, national, or international, young, or mature, full-time, or part-time, studying on a campus or by distance learning.

Higher Education qualifications are awarded by Degree-Awarding Institutions or Awarding Organisations. Walsall College is not a regulated Degree-Awarding Institution, therefore where Academic Standards are set and maintained by a certified Degree-Awarding Institution partnership, Walsall College will ensure that the delivery and maintenance of the Academic Standards of that particular institution is preserved and will be accountable to the Degree-Awarding Institution in terms of their own Quality Assurance (QA) processes. The College will also use its own Academic Regulations to support this process and cross-referencing against these standards will apply.





The specific role of the College as a delivery organisation in relation to Academic Standards is set out in the formal agreement with our partner Degree-Awarding Institutions.

Alignment with Walsall College iCARE Values

Walsall College places an emphasis on active learning, drawing upon materials and experiences from the workplace or wider industry wherever possible. This approach not only enhances subject-specific knowledge but also enables higher education students to develop transferable skills that prepare them for a changing and dynamic employment landscape. Such a commitment directly supports the achievement of the Walsall College Graduate (WCG) outcomes and reflects the College's iCARE values, which underpin all aspects of teaching, learning, and assessment.

In being **Inclusive**, the College embeds broad themes across the curriculum—such as education for sustainability, citizenship, and ethical behaviour—that extend beyond subject boundaries and reflect the wider purposes of higher education in society. These themes are designed to create a shared experience that promotes belonging, respect, and inclusivity across the student community.

Through **Collaboration**, the College fosters a community approach to learning, encouraging students to engage with each other, their tutors, and industry partners. Cross-college themes such as enterprise, entrepreneurship, and digital literacies are integrated into programmes of study to encourage shared exploration and dialogue, both within the classroom and across wider college initiatives.

The value of **Accountability** is reflected in the College's systematic review of teaching, learning, and assessment methodologies. Internal and external quality assurance measures are used to evaluate the effectiveness of higher education provision. Students and staff alike are encouraged to take ownership of their actions and contributions, ensuring that academic standards and professional behaviours are maintained.

Resilience is promoted by creating learning opportunities that encourage students to adapt to change, develop confidence in their abilities, and keep progressing despite challenges. By embedding transferable skills and ethical practices across the curriculum, the College equips students to respond positively to evolving personal, academic, and professional circumstances.

Finally, the value of **Enterprising** is evident in the College's commitment to preparing students for ambitious futures. The integration of entrepreneurship, creativity, and innovation into programmes ensures that students develop the skills, attitudes, and behaviours required to succeed in employment and wider society. Active learning experiences, grounded in industry relevance, provide students with opportunities to apply their knowledge and grow into ambitious, curious, and open-minded graduates.

Together, these practices demonstrate how the College's higher education provision is guided by its iCARE values, ensuring that learning is not only academically rigorous but also socially purposeful, inclusive, and future-focused.

Engaging Students as Partners

Student Engagement considers how we interact with students through our quality systems.





Walsall College ensures student engagement and representation activities are clearly defined, communicated, resourced, and supported. This is led by the Quality Team and the Student Voice Team. Transparent arrangements are in place for the collective student voice to be heard and responded to.

Walsall College is passionate about delivering the very best services to its students and to its community. We know that the way to do this is to involve students in as many different ways as possible to shape developments in the learning environment, to act on feedback we receive, and to communicate timely outcomes to students. Walsall College strives to ensure students understand that their voice has been listened to and are aware of how their views have impacted the assurance and enhancement of the student experience.



Student engagement opportunities and processes are at all times inclusive of students' characteristics and responsive to the diversity of everyone. Walsall College and student representative bodies ensure they recognise and celebrate the contribution of students to the enhancement of teaching and learning and the wider student experience. Students are enabled and encouraged to actively engage in the governance and enhancement of the wider student experience beyond the formal curriculum.

Walsall College Student Voice Strategy

Objectives:

Our objectives outlined within the Student Voice Strategy recognise that active engagement in democratic processes does make a difference. Active citizenship is a way for Walsall College Graduates and students to increase in confidence and benefit long-term from the skills learned through participation.

Our College becomes increasingly dynamic and effective as it develops and innovates in response to student feedback. The Student Voice process not only helps our College develop, but it supports students in understanding and being guided by the Colleges ICARE values.

Through active engagement, students are able to recognise and contribute to the Positive Communities and British Values of:

- Democracy.
- The rule of law.
- Individual liberty.
- Mutual respect and tolerance.

Student engagement with Quality Assurance and Enhancement of Learning Opportunities is well embedded.

All students are made aware at the start of the academic year of the range of processes to provide feedback and influence provision, with further reminders throughout the academic year, reinforming students that their voice, opinions, and experience are all valued. Higher Education students take part





in regular College surveys which refer to the external National Student Survey (NSS) to benchmark performance.

Surveys allow Higher Education students to feed back on their experience of induction, the quality of learning, teaching and assessment, and College support services and facilities. Higher Education students also feedback on unit assignments through the online Mark Book End of Unit Evaluation. Further formal feedback is gained from students via student focus groups, conferences, and meetings. HE students are represented at senior committees such as the HE Academic Board, Learning and Quality Committee (L&Q), and the Student Voice Committee, Walsall College encourage all students to take part in as many Student Voice activities as possible, which reiterates the importance of reassuring students that their feedback and experience is valued. Actions are tracked through the Student Voice Action Plan, with the aim to improve our provision. Improvements are fed back regularly to the student body along with other stakeholders of the College.

Students are required to comply with the College's iCARE Values. The College takes deliberate steps to assist every student to understand their responsibility to engage with the learning opportunities provided and to shape their learning experience. The College's iCARE Values applies to all students at all times, including when on work placements, educational visits or trips or other external College activities.

The College's iCARE Values also applies to College students undertaking programmes through educational or training providers or community centres that the College has contracted to provide services on its behalf. Students shall be informed about the iCARE Values as part of their induction. Any breach of the agreement will be considered in accordance with the College's Student Support process. Students are also required to comply with all College Health and Safety policies and procedures, at all times.

Harassment and Sexual Misconduct Prevention

Walsall College is committed to ensuring a safe, respectful, and inclusive learning environment for all Higher Education students. In line with the Office for Students' Condition of Registration E6, which came into effect on 1 August 2025, the College has strengthened its approach to the prevention and management of harassment and sexual misconduct. This work is embedded within the College's wider safeguarding and student support framework, ensuring that students are protected and supported throughout their time at the College.

To meet the expectations of Condition E6, the College has established clear definitions of harassment, sexual misconduct, and abuse of power, ensuring that students and staff understand what behaviours are unacceptable. Policies and procedures have been developed to provide transparent reporting routes, fair investigation processes, and consistent outcomes. These procedures are supported by clear guidance, so that students know how to report incidents and what support is available to them. Training for staff and students forms a key part of this approach, raising awareness, building confidence in reporting systems, and fostering a culture of prevention and respect.

The College has also taken steps to ensure that non-disclosure agreements (NDAs) are not used in relation to cases of harassment or sexual misconduct. This reflects the national ban on NDAs in such cases and underlines Walsall College's commitment to openness and accountability. In addition, policies have been strengthened to address potential abuses of power in staff—student relationships,





recognising the risks associated with imbalances of authority and ensuring safeguards are in place to protect students.

Monitoring and evaluation are central to the College's approach. Regular reviews of policies, reporting data, and student feedback are undertaken to assess the effectiveness of current processes and identify areas for improvement. This ensures that the College's practices remain responsive and aligned with both regulatory requirements and the evolving needs of the student community. Importantly, these measures are balanced with the College's duty to uphold freedom of speech, ensuring that students are protected from misconduct without restricting lawful expression and academic debate.

Through these measures, Walsall College demonstrates its full compliance with the OfS Condition E6. Students can be confident that if they experience harassment or sexual misconduct, they will have access to confidential reporting routes, fair investigation processes, and a wide range of academic and wellbeing support. The College is committed to building a safe and supportive environment where students are empowered to speak out, secure in the knowledge that their concerns will be addressed with seriousness, fairness, and care.

Freedom of Speech

Walsall College has a Code of Practice on Freedom of Speech, which describes the philosophy, principals and procedures relating to our responsibility to foster freedom of expression, and the circumstances in which that freedom might be restricted, in order to prevent violence, abuse or discrimination. The policy also details our responsibilities regarding visiting speakers.

Walsall College is committed to upholding academic freedom of enquiry in its education and believes that a culture of free and open discussion is essential. This open culture of discussion can only be achieved if all concerned behave with tolerance and respect the College's values, as outlined in our Ready, Respect, Safe Agreement. This ensures good relations and the safety of students, staff, and the college community.



Attendance and Participation

Attendance refers to the College's expectations with regard to the way in which students engage with the learning, teaching, and assessment requirements for their course of study. Students are expected to regularly attend all forms of learning activities associated with their course of study and to participate in their course of study as required by the College.

The College publishes term dates and delivers learning, teaching, and assessment activities during such dates. Students are expected to be available to participate in teaching, learning, and assessment activities during all term dates.

The College expects students to ensure that a particular course of study or unit is acceptable, prior to enrolment, and they are able to meet the attendance, learning and assessment requirements for that





course and/or unit. The College is not able to change the programme specifications and requirements, or scheduling of courses or units to meet an individual student's specific needs.

Students are required to complete all assessment for the units they are registered for, as prescribed by the relevant unit specifications. Where the reason for absence or failure to complete assessment is due to illness, or other circumstances that are unplanned and outside of the student's control, students are expected to submit a request for Extenuating Circumstances/Extension Form (located in the Assessment and Quality Assurance Policy and Procedure) and to provide appropriate documentary evidence.

Teaching, learning, and assessment approaches are implemented to enable students to develop as independent, autonomous students, with provision of opportunities for independent learning that places emphasis on developing students with high levels of critical thinking skills.

Where possible, programmes benefit from external links with those working in the vocational sector. These links are provided in a variety of ways, for example:

- Tutors will regularly review the vocational relevance of assignments.
- Tutors will provide 'live' case study material that is company or organisation based.
- Tutors will arrange visits to companies and other vocational settings, when appropriate.
- Tutors will secure professional input from companies and vocational practitioners; especially where vocational expertise is clearly identified in the delivery section of the units.
- Work placement that is specifically related to the qualification.
- Tutor placements are arranged to enhance their vocational expertise.

Resourcing Delivery of a High-Quality Learning Experience

Strategic and operational plans, along with resources, align with the student journey and are designed and implemented to support a positive student experience and enable student achievement.

Walsall College ensures that they have dedicated, accessible and inclusive resources to support and enhance the delivery of all programmes along with the well-being of students and staff. These include staffing, digital, and physical resources.

Resources are reviewed and updated in alignment with strategic developments and changes in provision, as well as staff and student recruitment. This also ensures relevance to the workplace and the wider academic discipline. Staff within the College are supported with ongoing professional development to support and enhance the delivery of a high-quality and innovative student learning and research experience.

The creation, development and maintenance of accessible and inclusive learning environments (physical and virtual) offer all students the opportunity to be engaged in their learning experience and facilitate a sense of belonging. The College ensure they consider environmental sustainability in designing and maintaining these learning resources and facilities.





Evaluating Quality and Standards

Using Data to Inform and Evaluate Quality

A consistent, coherent, and evidence-informed strategic approach to the collection, storage and management of data is employed across the College. Walsall College makes clear the type and level of data used (such as departmental, programme, module level) and the policies and processes that underpin its use in the maintenance of academic standards and the assurance and enhancement of quality.

All staff and students should be aware of the type of data gathered and how it is stored and used in the management of quality and standards. If any student is unsure of this, it is advised they speak to their tutor.

When designing, operating, monitoring, and evaluating staff and student's data arrangements, staff and students adhere to ethical and data protection requirements relating to gathering and submitting data for national data sets, regulatory purposes, and internal monitoring and evaluation.

Staff who are required to collect, control, and analyse data for reporting, quality assurance and enhancement purposes receive training that enables them to undertake these activities effectively, ethically, and securely. Policies cover any third-party use of data, including applications using Generative Artificial Intelligence.

Data is collected and analysed in ways that enable the College to understand and respond to the needs of their student populations, promoting equality, diversity and inclusion, and environmental sustainability.

Monitoring, Evaluating and Enhancing Provision

Our commitment to Quality is embedded within a comprehensive Quality Enhancement and Assurance Cycle. This includes quality of teaching, learning and assessment, and success in outcomes, through Developmental Observations, Quality Reviews, Quality Summits, Periodic Reviews, Internal Verification, Stakeholder Voice activities, and Self- Assessment and Quality Improvement Planning. For each process there is a Higher Education specific approach and filter. Higher Education specific course performance, student progress and student satisfaction are scrutinised and monitored to the same robust degree as Further Education provision.

External engagement is a key feature of our quality approach. Pearson external examiners visit annually to review our BTEC Higher National provision, meeting with staff and students and providing independent assurance of our standards. When working with validating universities, we engage fully with their quality processes, ensuring consistency across our provision. We also use QAA's *Beyond the Baseline* resources to stretch out practice further and maintain our reputation as a provider that exceeds minimum standards.

Programme monitoring and review draws upon a range of qualitative and quantitative information. This includes data on student progression and achievement, information made publicly available or reported to external bodies including professional, regulatory, and statutory bodies, reports from external examiners, subject benchmark statements, and other comparative data. Where possible,





data is disaggregated by protected characteristic in order to identify any differential impact on particular groups of students. The college agree strategic principles for monitoring and evaluation to ensure processes are applied systematically, operated consistently and appropriate to their operational context.

The methods for monitoring and evaluation activity are documented to clarify their aims, objectives, intended actions and targets. They are explicit about how they will be conducted, the nature of evidence (data) to be considered and the form of reporting, along with key indicators of success.

The three-year cycle of Periodic Review includes all Higher Education programmes delivered at Walsall College.

The quality of the learning opportunities which students experience and the standard of the awards that they take away are central to the Periodic Review process. The College uses the findings and action plans from Periodic Reviews to inform curriculum planning and review.

Staff and students are engaged in monitoring and evaluation activities and receive appropriate training and support to undertake them. The actions and outcomes from monitoring and evaluation activities are communicated in an accessible manner to staff, students, the governing body and, where required, external stakeholders.

Improvements and enhancements that have been implemented as a result of monitoring and evaluation are, in turn monitored and evaluated to ensure their impact is positive and remains fit for purpose. Monitoring and evaluation activity facilitates the college's insights and promotion of equality, diversity and inclusion, and education for sustainable development.

Programmes and modules are monitored and reviewed regularly by internal and externa peers, employers, and students. In line with the college's strategic approach to quality and standards. Outcomes from processes required from funding, accrediting, professional and approval bodies feed into monitoring and review.



Engaging in External Review and Accreditation

Students are at the heart of everything we do at Walsall College. Our Student Voice Strategy ensures that all HE students have multiple opportunities to shape their experience. From induction onwards, students are informed about how their voice contributes to change. They are represented on key





committees, such as the HE Academic Board and Learning and Quality Committee, and their views are captured through focus groups, end of unit evaluations, Question of the Week and College-wide surveys.

Outcomes from these activities are fed into the Student Voice Action Plan, and we ensure that improvements are communicated back to students so that they can see the impact of their feedback. We also embed student engagement through our iCARE values, which sets out the expectations of behaviour for all students. This agreement underpins a respectful and inclusive learning environment where every student feels valued and heard. Students are reminded regularly that their feedback matters, and our staff work to show how Student Voice has shaped policies, programme delivery, and facilities.

We take pride in our inclusive and supportive environment. Our dedicated support services – including study skills, careers advice, and the Inclusive Support team – are designed to meet the needs of all our students. By combining high academic standards with personalised support, we enable students to succeed and to develop the independence, confidence, and skills required for employment or further study.

External review, whether optional or required by National Quality frameworks or accrediting bodies, is built into the college's strategic approach and aligns to internal quality and standards monitoring and evaluation activity. The College use outcomes from external review and accreditation as a catalyst for ongoing improvement and strategic enhancement of the student learning experience.

Walsall College acknowledge and support the expertise and resource required to participate in external review and accreditation. When engaging in external review, the College understand the UK national regulatory and legislative contexts in which they operate and the different approaches, forms and focus they may take. The college understands the requirements and process for external reviews that may be required by regulators in partner delivery locations.

External Examining

The External Examiner appointed by Pearson BTEC will visit the delivery team, meeting staff and students and sampling a range of assessment and verification decisions against national standards. An External Examiner's report is produced as a result of this visit, which is shared with the appropriate staff and students, and is also presented at the College's Annual Assessment Board.

Annual Assessment Boards

The College holds an annual Assessment Board for all of its BTEC Higher National programmes. The main purpose of the Assessment Board is to make recommendations on:

- the grades achieved by students on the individual units.
- extenuating circumstances.
- cases of cheating and plagiarism.
- progression of students onto the next stage of the programme (where appropriate).
- the awards to be made to students.
- referrals and deferrals.





The membership of the Assessment Board is:

- Assistant Principal Quality (Chair).
- Director of Faculty in which the course is based, or his/her nominated representative.
- Curriculum Delivery Manager (CDM)/Apprentice Sector Manager (ASM).
- Tutors/Vocational Coaches for the programme(s) being considered.

Decisions on grades, referrals, deferrals, progressions, and recommendations for awards are the responsibility of the Assessment Board.

Grades will remain provisional until they have been confirmed by the Assessment Board. Assessment Board outcomes and External Panel Member recommendations are recorded formally by the College's Quality Team and shared with the appropriate curriculum staff. Any actions and progress are monitored through to completion.

Final decisions on the award of grades are communicated to the College's Examinations Team, who then process certification through the Awarding Body (Pearson) in order to claim student certification.

Implementing the Approach to Quality Enhancement and Standards

Designing, Developing, Approving and Modifying Programmes

At Walsall College, we are proud of our strong reputation for vocationally relevant Higher Education. Our Academic Standards are safeguarded through rigorous programme design and approval processes, which are overseen by our Senior Management Team and the HE Academic Board. Programmes are designed to meet the requirements of the FHEQ or RQF, informed by subject benchmark statements, local labour market intelligence, and input from employers. This means that our courses are not only academically robust, but also relevant to the career aspirations of our students.

Students, employers, and external experts are routinely involved in shaping our provision. For example, many of our Higher National assignment briefs are co-designed with local employers to ensure authenticity. All new HE programmes undergo a comprehensive internal validation process and external approval by Pearson or our university partners. Assessments are carefully designed to be inclusive and authentic, giving students opportunities to demonstrate their learning through methods that reflect real-world practice. This reinforces our commitment to vocational education that prepares students for employment and lifelong learning.

The Directors of Faculty have responsibility to ensure all aspects of quality assurance processes are effective and fully embedded in the design, development, and approval of all programmes. Curriculum Managers (CMs) are responsible for academic and resource planning to ensure relevancy and currency. All programmes and modules are designed to meet Academic Standards that are consistent with relevant national qualifications and credit frameworks. Where applicable, the College also meets professional body and accreditation requirements, and Apprenticeship Standards.





Where the College delivers in partnership with a Degree Awarding Institution, programme design and development are determined by the institution's own management/leadership teams, who take ultimate responsibility for Academic Standards and the quality of learning opportunities.

Where the College delivers Pearson BTEC Higher National qualifications, programme teams use the nationally devised and accredited specification for each BTEC qualification, as their first point of reference for all planning and assessment. These nationally devised and accredited structures and curriculum content reflect the local dimension of how the programmes are then delivered. The programme teams refer to Pearson's Assessment and Delivery Guidance when developing and designing programme specifications. All BTEC units are assessed through internal assessment, which allows teams to deliver the programme in a way that suits their students and relates to local need. Curriculum teams consider student feedback, as well as external expertise, when determining unit context and designing assignment briefs. Students are involved meaningfully in the design, development, approval and modification of programmes and modules.

Prior to delivery, programme leaders agree a definitive annual assessment plan, produced from the design, development, approval, and modification processes. Once designed, all summative assignment briefs are internally verified and checked for coverage of programme specifications, prior to issue to students. Programme delivery includes formative assessment tracking for students and summative unit grading. Internal verification and standardisation activities effectively ensure consistent and accurate assessment decisions are made. Similar but proportionate arrangements are in place for modules and smaller units of study.

Pearson allocates a subject-specific expert, External Examiner, to a programme sector to conduct sampling of assessed student work and provide judgements and feedback. The External Examiner works with and supports the delivery team in identifying good practice and areas for further development, giving guidance on how to improve delivery. Programme leaders work closely with their External Examiner to ensure that the College's implementation, delivery, and assessment are consistent with national standards.

All BTEC Higher National Qualifications delivered by the College are based on a teaching year comprising of an Autumn, Spring and Summer term of approximately 12 weeks each. All Pearson courses are classified as full-time study (12 hours minimum contact), with an option to study part-time (apart from where specified as part-time only).

All proposals for the development of Higher Education courses at Walsall College are subject to a process of approval by the College's internal validation panels, and external approval by the Awarding Organisation (Pearson) or validating university. The internal process has two stages: Course Approval (Stage 1) and Internal Validation by Curriculum Planning Group (Stage 2).

The first stage, Course Approval, is concerned with the proposal's academic fit with Walsall College's Strategic Ambitions. Therefore, ensuring that the appropriate resources available to run the programme are planned for (e.g., staff expertise and capacity, equipment and specialist spaces), and that the external markets for the programme (both in terms of student recruitment and the employability of graduates) have been evaluated and weighed in the balance. Proposals for development must be approved by the College's Course Approval panel prior to submission for internal validation at Curriculum Planning Group (Stage 2), in the Higher Education Academic Board.





External validation or Course Approval is sought according to the requirements of the Awarding Organisation (Pearson) or validating university. The College reserves the right to amend or withdraw any course of study at any time as it deems necessary. Normally, amendments to courses of study are enacted for the next cohort of students to join the course. Where an amendment to a course has an effect on students currently registered for it, those students will be formally notified of the amendment and provided with an opportunity to object to it (should they wish to do so).

Once approved, course withdrawals are not enacted until there are no students remaining registered on the course in question.

The award to be received and how outcomes of study are recorded and certificated are made clear to all students and staff involved in the teaching, learning and evaluation of the programme and module. Policies and processes that support the design, development, approval and modification of programmes and modules are published on the college's website and are easily accessible to key stakeholders. The design, development, approval, and modification processes align with the College's policies and practices on equity, equality, diversity and inclusion, and environmental sustainability.

Recruiting, Selecting and Admitting Students

Walsall College's Strategic Ambitions and Mission Statement position the College as an agent for social inclusion and social change and one that welcomes students from all backgrounds, including those not traditionally well represented in higher education.

The College will endeavour to facilitate the entry of a broad spectrum of participants into higher education, who, by virtue of either their possession of a recognised qualification, as specified by the entry requirements provided by the college for each course (or other record of achievement), or their maturity



and experience are deemed likely to fulfil their specific learning objectives. Where students are not deemed ready to access higher education, the College will seek to provide (through our Careers, Education, Information, Advice and Guidance team) courses which will support students in achieving readiness for higher education.

The College will ensure that procedures in place for the recruitment and admission of students are readily accessible, fair, clear and implemented consistently, including processes for the recognition of prior learning. Similar and proportionate arrangements are in place for modules and other units of study.

Applications

The College will ensure the speedy conversion of appropriate applications into offers to support suitable prospective students, and their advisors for recruitment and widening access purposes, by having transparent academic and non-academic entry requirements, which lead to the enrolment of new entrants at appropriate levels in the College.





Applicants will be provided with the timely information, and advice and guidance needed for them to make informed choices about the courses best suited to their individual needs and circumstances. Advice will also be given that covers financial support and costs, together with the obligations placed upon them at the point at which an offer of a place is made, and for the start of the course.



Walsall College, ensure they meet their legal and regulatory obligations in relation to the information presented about themselves and their provision or any changes they make to programmes and modules. The college will inform prospective students as soon as possible of any significant changes to a course which may occur from the time of the offer being made and enrolment and will inform successful applicants of the arrangements for enrolment, registration, and induction. The College will ensure that effective and appropriate arrangements are in place for providing feedback to applicants who have not been offered a place.

The College will ensure that procedures are in place for responding to applicants' complaints about the operation of the admissions process, and appeals about the outcome of a selection decision, and will ensure that all staff involved with admissions are familiar with the procedures.

Whilst recognising relevant statutory and professional requirements, this regulation and associated procedures are framed within the College's published Student Support Policy and Procedure and operate to ensure equality of opportunity for all applicants to the College, irrespective of protected characteristics.

The College's Access and Participation Plan 2022/23-2026/27 applies to prospective and current Higher Education. This plan outlines the College's Mission and Strategic Plan and objectives, which demonstrates a clear commitment to widening and increasing participation in Higher Education, regardless of any potential barriers associated with previous experience, background, or any other factors. As with all previous College OFFA agreements, the approved Access and Participation Plan is published on the College's website.

All applicants to the College will be required to complete the appropriate application form for the course. The College will not admit or allow the continuation of study for any person found to have made a fraudulent application. Students who have previously been excluded from any course in the College for reasons of discipline, academic misconduct or fitness to practice will not be permitted to study at the College again.

Entry Requirements

The general entry requirements for admission to the College are approved by the College's Senior Management Team or its delegated authority. The admissions requirements for individual courses are set out in the prospectus and website information for that course and approved by the College's Senior Management Team; the College may adjust these, without notice, as it deems appropriate.

A candidate, before admission to a course of study leading to one of the higher education qualifications as set out in Part A above, shall be required to satisfy any conditions set out in the offer of a place.





The College requires each student to be issued with a student ID card that includes a photograph that shows their full head and face. Students are required to carry their student ID card at all times when on the premises, or when participating in College or Students' Union activities. The College reserves the right to suspend any student who is unable, on demand, to produce their current student ID card. Students are responsible for arranging a replacement ID card when theirs is lost or stolen. The College reserves the right to charge an administrative fee for replacement ID cards.

Modes of Study

A student enrolled with the College and registered for a course of study undertakes the course in accordance with the specified mode of study. Students shall be able to study full-time, part-time, during the day and/or the evening, by distance learning or any other approved mode of delivery, as stated in the relevant course specification. Change of mode of study is not normally permissible, except where the approved course of study allows it and the College's Senior Management Team or its delegated authority agrees it. This is formal request between the student, and the College.

Enrolment and Registration



Students must enrol with the College at the beginning of their studies and re-enrol at the beginning of each subsequent stage or academic year of their course, in accordance with instructions issued by the College. A student cannot be registered with the Awarding Body unless they are enrolled with the College. Normally, individuals who are not enrolled or registered at the College may not use College facilities.

The College reserves the right to charge a late enrolment and/or registration fee to any student who fails to enrol/register by the published deadline(s). The name by which a student is enrolled is the name under which any letter, transcript, certificate, or award is issued in respect of that student. Any request to record a change of

name must be made by email to lrstudentdata@walsallcollege.ac.uk or in writing, and must be supported by appropriate documentary evidence.

The College requires students to produce documentary evidence of identity upon initial enrolment; this may be required in advance. Any student who enrols or registers with the College under a name, identity, or with any other information that is subsequently found to be false will have their registration and enrolment terminated and will cease to be a student. Students are required to notify the College, on enrolment, of their permanent and term-time address, and must inform the College by email or in writing, of any subsequent changes of address.

Payment of Fees and Other Charges

All students shall pay fees and charges appropriate to their course of study and fee status, subject to any fee waivers or payment plans agreed by the College Fees Policy. No student shall continue on a course of study to which they have been admitted unless they have paid the fees and charges stated by the College for that course of study within the time prescribed by the College.





The College reserves the right to increase fees at any time, without prior notice, for implementation during the next academic year. Students are required to pay promptly, upon demand, all charges, fees, or debts incurred in the course of their registration and enrolment at the College.

Failure to settle outstanding debt during the course of the programme will result in instigation of the Student Support Policy and Procedure at the appropriate level. In the event of default of tuition fees payment, student registration and enrolment may be terminated, and they will cease to be a student of the College.

The College will normally give a student formal, written notification of the intention to de-register, and a specific deadline by which they can pay the relevant fee or charge before de-registration will occur. If no payment has been received by this time and the student is still in debt to the College, then their registration and enrolment will be terminated, and they will cease to be a student of the College. As per the Terms and Conditions of enrolment, the student remains liable for any associated fees, irrespective to the duration of course participation and/or completion. The College reserves the right to refer any outstanding debts on to an external collection agent; whereby additional costs may be incurred.

Interruption of Enrolment and Changes to Registration

Interruption of study: A student may take an interruption in their programme of study. The period of interruption shall normally be up to one year. An interruption of study shall be approved following consultation between the student and the curriculum team, to ascertain the appropriate point at which to interrupt study and recommence the programme. Where a programme is to be discontinued, or significantly amended, it may not be possible to grant an interruption of study.

At the time a student interrupts their programme of study, the student's enrolment on the programme shall temporarily lapse. At the time a student recommences study after an interruption, the student shall re-enrol on the programme before they are permitted to continue on the programme. The College's Fees Policy sets out requirements for the payment of fees following interrupted registration.

Withdrawal of registration or de-registration by the College from a course of study leads to immediate termination of a student's registration and enrolment, and they will cease to be a student of the College. Any third-party fees including exam registration or professional membership fees are non-refundable.

In accordance with statutory obligations, the College will report to the relevant government and other external agencies when an individual ceases to be a student of the College. This includes, but is not limited to, Student Finance England, Local Education Authorities, and any other sponsor. A student who is persistently absent, fails to participate or continually fails to submit assessments by the relevant date, without extenuation or extension, may be de-registered from the relevant unit and/or the course of study. This may affect a student's ability to complete the full award requirements of their course.

Student Protection Plan

The Student Protection Plan (SPP) is a formal policy required by the Office for Students (OfS) for all Higher Education providers. It sets out the actions Walsall College will take to protect the interests of





our Higher Education students if unforeseen events occur that affect course delivery. These events might include course closures, significant changes to delivery methods, or, in more serious circumstances, financial difficulties that could impact the College's ability to deliver Higher Education provision.

Walsall College manages the Student Protection Plan through proactive risk monitoring, contingency planning, and student support mechanisms. Risks are regularly assessed by reviewing financial stability, monitoring recruitment and retention, and maintaining robust academic quality assurance. If a course is discontinued or significantly altered, students are informed as early as possible—ideally at least one year in advance—and offered alternative study options either within the College or through partner institutions. Support may include transfer arrangements, completion through alternative routes, or, where necessary, financial refunds.

In the unlikely event of financial difficulty or insolvency, Walsall College has contingency arrangements such as insurance cover and partnerships with other providers to ensure continuity of study. Throughout any change, communication with students is prioritised. The College provides timely updates, clear points of contact, and access to dedicated support services such as academic advice, counselling, and financial guidance. The plan is reviewed annually, with input from students, staff, and stakeholders, ensuring that it remains current, effective, and responsive to the needs of the higher education community.

Supporting Students to Achieve their Potential

We are proud of the achievements of our students, and we monitor continuation, completion, and progress data closely in line with OfS Condition B3. The iCARE values and attributes are central to our provision. These include digital skills, entrepreneurship, sustainability awareness, and active citizenship. For example, sustainability is promoted though College-wide initiatives such as our Green Skills projects, while entrepreneurship is embedded through live projects with local business partners. By embedding these attributes across all programmes, we ensure that our HE students leave us with not only a qualification but also the skills, values, and confidence to thrive in their chosen careers.

Employability is also central to our approach. We maintain strong links with employers and embed opportunities for work placements, vocationally relevant projects, and employer engagement into our HE provisions. This ensures that students are well prepared for employment and progression into further study. Walsall College works effectively with staff, students, and other stakeholders, to systematically review and enhance the provision of learning opportunities and teaching practices. This purposely enables every student to develop as an independent individual. From initial advice and guidance through to induction activities and the delivery of study skills, students can access their chosen subject(s) with an expectation of working at an increasingly higher level of autonomy, producing in-depth evidence, which enhances their capacity for analytical, critical, and creative thinking.

As a truly inclusive College, we will develop talent from all sectors of society, fully develop the talent of all our staff and students, and build collaboration and a sense of community. The College is able to take steps to engage all students, individually and collectively, as partners in the quality assurance and enhancement of their educational experience. We are able to monitor and evaluate support arrangements and resources, which enables students to develop their academic, personal, and





professional potential. Every student is enabled to monitor their progress and further their academic development through the provision of regular opportunities to reflect on feedback and engage in dialogue with staff.

Each student has an Individual Learning Plan (Walsall College Graduate) which formally captures progress and records and monitors targets. The College student tracking system Moodle keeps formal records of summative assessment/attainment per unit/module. All students are supported at key transition points throughout their journey, with their specific needs and requirements met and their pathways into learning recognised.

Accessible, relevant, accurate and timely information is offered to students and the staff supporting them throughout the learning journey about the college, programme of study, wider opportunities for development and availability of support services. Students and staff are aware of the ongoing academic, professional, and pastoral services and activities available, and students are encouraged to access these opportunities and support throughout their learning journey.

Staff are appropriately qualified, trained and supported to deliver high-quality learning and support for all students, particularly those with specific needs and requirements.

Walsall College students and staff recognise that activities offered outside the formal curriculum are beneficial for promoting students' sense of belonging, as well as providing opportunities to broaden their skills and achievements, complementing their formal studies.



Teaching, Learning and Assessment

The Office for Students (OfS) has responsibility for the strategic oversight of the UK Quality Code for Higher Education Providers in England and is currently designated for student support by the Secretary of State.

Walsall College is committed to continuously improving the high-quality vocational education and training it provides for a diverse range of students.

Teaching and Learning for our Higher Education provision at Walsall College is guided by our Higher Education Teaching and Learning Strategy. This strategy is rooted in our mission to provide a transformative education that is practical, inclusive and employment focused. Our staff use a blend of theory, practical, project-based learning, and technology-enhanced approaches to engage students. Vocational relevance is embedded through live briefs, employer-led projects, and visits to industry, ensuring that our students are ready for the workplace.

Assessments are designed and delivered in accordance with Pearson's **Centre Guide to Quality Assurance and Assessment and** are subject to rigorous internal and external verification. Academic integrity is taken very seriously, and we ensure that students understand their responsibilities in relation to plagiarism, collusion, and the appropriate use of Artificial Intelligence (AI). Feedback is





provided within 20 working days, ensuring students can use it to improve their future performance. This timely and constructive feedback reflects our commitment to nurturing student success. Regardless of full-time or part-time mode of study, education on these courses can embrace a wide variety of modes of both Teaching and Learning, which can be used in different combinations.

There is always a degree of learning expected to take place outside of the College contact hours and specific guidance regarding this is outlined during each unit/module of study. Where Teaching and Learning is delivered through partnership with another organisation, the responsibilities of each of the parties are defined in a written agreement. Students are given clear information about the intended modular and/or programme learning outcomes and the purpose of assessment and are enabled to use feedback/feedforward to support further learning.

Staff involved in facilitating learning and supervising research are appropriately qualified and supported to enhance their teaching and supervisory practice. Research degrees are delivered in supportive environments that are conducive to learning and research. The College ensures students are enabled and encouraged to take responsibility for their own learning and to take an active role in shaping and enhancing the learning process. The College also offer ongoing advice and guidance about academic integrity to ensure that students and staff understand what is expected of them.

The central themes of effective Teaching and Learning are:

- Inclusive learning through promoting equity, diversity, and equal opportunity.
- The College and its staff (all those who facilitate learning), students and other stakeholders working in partnership.
- Learning facilitated by enthusiastic and qualified staff through teaching and other types of support for learning, whether formal or informal.

Underpinning the themes and approaches to effective Teaching and Learning is a clear and dedicated commitment to maintain physical, virtual, and social learning environments that are safe, accessible, and reliable for every student, promoting dignity, courtesy, and respect in their use. Where applicable, and sustainable, students are offered different options for undertaking assessments to promote accessibility and inclusion.

Learning at Walsall College is vocational, active, motivational, and progressive. It is closely linked to assessment; allowing development of skills, knowledge and attributes that will enable HE students to achieve. A large proportion of our HE units are practical in nature giving students the opportunities to explore 'real-life' examples to apply their skills and knowledge to case studies or projects.

As well as vocational experience, we also link well with those currently working in the sector, providing an active role in assignment writing that is relevant to employment.

From the start, delivery teams will devise the most effective way of delivering and assessing a unit or assignment, to ensure that every student is provided with an equal and effective opportunity to achieve the intended learning outcomes.

College strategies for learning may include:

Project work conducted as an individual or as part of a group.





- Work-based learning.
- Lectures and seminars.
- Facilitated activities.
- Visits to companies with a facilitator to structure the experience.
- Visiting speakers from the vocational sector.
- External enrichment activities,

The Higher Education Teaching and Learning Strategy continues to reflect the College's mission, strategic ambitions and values and is closely linked to objectives outlined by the Office for Students. This serves to promote a shared understanding of good practice amongst staff, students, and other stakeholders.

We aim to provide quality learning, teaching and assessment which is core to Walsall College's commitment to provide individuals with a personalised learning experience that will enhance confidence, aspirations and optimise their learning outcomes and progression.

In pursuit of this aim, the College will improve the quality of learning for all students by:

- Applying a 'right student, right course' philosophy, which is designed to ensure recruitment integrity onto a programme of study that fits the individual concerned.
- Providing focused development to empower staff to deliver first class education and training.
- Managing elements of provision that impact on the ability of the student to participate, succeed, and progress. These key variables include a curriculum offer at appropriate levels, enhancement to improve the quality of learning opportunities, careers information, advice and guidance, entry requirements and initial assessment and e-Learning.

The College commitment to enable students to be skilled, professional, and enterprising is fundamental to the Strategy. The College seeks to provide students with the best possible learning and teaching experiences in an environment that enables them to have access to resources, which will support them:

- Interact and collaborate with staff and other students.
- Develop self-awareness, independent skills and become more autonomous.
- Reach their potential in their chosen areas of study.

As students begin Higher Education at Walsall College, delivery and assessment methods help them to move from dependency to independency and self-directedness. Every student is provided with clear and current information that specifies the learning opportunities and support available to them. Students will typically take increased control of their personal learning programme and demonstrate a readiness to learn associated with their personal development and independent performance. The College work hard to enable students to recognise the progression they have made and steps they need to take to achieve their potential.

Walsall College establish coherent approaches to technologies that impact teaching, learning and assessment (such as Generative Artificial Intelligence). These approaches are clearly communicated to staff and students, including how they are used and clear definition regarding the misuse of such technologies. The College offer advice and guidance about academic integrity to ensure that students





and staff understand what is expected of them throughout the learning journey. The advice is kept current.

Recognition of Prior Learning

Any student registered on a course of study leading to an award by the College who has pursued appropriate studies in the College or another institution, or who possesses appropriate qualifications or experience, has the right to be considered for the Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL), as defined in the Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) Policy and Procedure. This means that they may be exempt from some of the course of study. The assessment of RPL claims is a distinct process from the admissions process, even where the claims are considered at the same time as the admissions process.

Decisions regarding the recognition of prior learning must be made from a basis of equivalence. The learning derived from experience and/or prior certificated study must be judged equivalent to that of the learning that might otherwise have been achieved by following parts of the accredited course of study, or unit. Decisions must therefore be informed by reference to explicit assessment criteria contained within course and module specifications. Decisions will also be subject to any other processes specified by the Awarding Body.

The award of RPL is subject to the following:

- the procedures set for RPL follow College guidance.
- the course team has assessed the claim in terms of validity, authenticity, reliability, currency, sufficiency and level and can demonstrate that the student's previously assessed or experiential learning meets all the learning outcomes stated in the unit specification for the unit(s) for which they are to be awarded credit;
- a written record of the process for each student is kept by the Course Team.
- appeals against RPL decisions will be addressed according to the student appeal procedure set out in these regulations.

Assessment of Students

These regulations are standard assessment regulations for programmes of study leading to the award of Pearson BTEC Higher National qualifications. Course teams delivering these programmes adhere to the guidance and requirements within the Pearson BTEC Higher Nationals Centre Guide to Quality Assurance and Assessment 2023-2024. Where indicated, students should refer to the appropriate Student Course Handbook for further details of the assessment requirements for their programme of study.

The College's priority for assessment is to deliver valid, reliable, fair, and manageable assessment. Assessment programmes are designed so that skills and knowledge can be developed in line with the assessment criteria. A range of assessment methods are used, such as:

- presentations, written reports, accounts, surveys.
- log books, production diaries.
- role play.
- observations of practical tasks or performance.
- articles for journals, press releases.





- production of visual or audio materials, artefacts, products, and specimens.
- peer and self-assessment.
- group projects.

Course teams make maximum use of work-related practical experience and reflecting typical practice in the sector concerned. In many cases, the use of industry partners and clients help to design the actual assignment briefs and projects.

A holistic view of the programme is taken to ensure there is an appropriate spread of assessment activities within, and across the units. The units making up the programme collectively allow students opportunities to develop, and be assessed in, higher level skills, such as analysis, literature searching, teamwork, management responsibilities, effective communication etc.

The final assessment clearly states which outcome(s), assessment criteria and grade descriptors have been achieved. Where applicable any necessary remedial action is also listed. No overall grade of pass, merit or distinction can be given for evidence that covers only part of a unit.

Authenticity and Authentication

The College will only accept evidence for assessment that is authentic, i.e., that is the student's own and that can be judged fully to see whether it meets the assessment criteria. All material submitted for assessment, including assessment that does not count towards the unit grade, shall be the student's own work (except where group work specifically forms part of the assignment). Quotations from the published or unpublished work of other persons must always be attributed, both at the appropriate point in the text and in the bibliography at the end.

Evidence for assessment, where appropriate, must be submitted via the College's on-line assessment tool (Moodle) where the submission date is formally recorded.

Students are required to authenticate their assessment evidence as their own work. Where assessment evidence is not electronic (e.g., art portfolios) students are required to submit to a declaration of practical assignment submission, authenticating evidence as their own work on Moodle.

Assessors assess only student evidence that is authentic.

If they find through the assessment process that there is evidence of assessment malpractice, they take appropriate action, including invoking the College's Academic Misconduct Policy as required. All students and staff are aware of:

- what is considered assessment malpractice.
- the related processes for investigating malpractice.
- the possible outcomes that may be reached and the consequences.

Malpractice shall be minimised by ensuring students and staff are aware of what constitutes malpractice, including, but not limited to, plagiarism, collusion, fabrication of results, falsifying grades, fraudulent certification claims; referencing skills; and the College's zero-tolerance approach.





Assessment and AI (Artificial Intelligence)

Al and Academic Misconduct: Any use of Al which means students have not independently demonstrated their own attainment is likely to be considered malpractice. Students should acknowledge any use of Al (including citations/screenshots).

Students must acknowledge its use and show clearly how they have used it. If an AI tool provides details of the sources it has used in generating content, these sources must be verified by the student and referenced in their work in the normal way. Where an AI tool does not provide such details, students should ensure that they independently verify the AI-generated content – and then reference the sources they have used.

All students should familiarise themselves with the College's Academic Misconduct Policy and Procedure.

Formative Assessment

Formative assessment involves both the Assessor and the student in a conversation about their progress and takes place prior to summative assessment. The main function of formative assessment is to provide feedback to enable the student to make improvements to consolidate a Pass mark or attain a higher grade. Feedback is given promptly to ensure it has meaning, context for the student and that time is given following the feedback for actions to be completed. Students are provided with formative feedback during the process of assessment and are empowered to act to improve their performance. Feedback on formative assessment is constructive and provides clear guidance and actions for improvement. Following formative assessment and feedback, students are able to:

- re-visit work to add to the original evidence produced to consolidate a Pass grade, or to enhance their work to achieve higher grade.
- submit evidence for summative assessment and final unit grade.

Summative Assessment

Summative assessment is a final assessment decision on an assignment task in relation to the assessment criteria of each unit. It is the definitive assessment and recording of the student's achievement.

Grading Higher National Units

The grading of BTEC Higher National qualifications is at the unit and the qualification level. Each successfully completed unit will be graded as a pass, merit, or distinction:

- A pass is awarded for the achievement of all outcomes against the specified assessment criteria.
- Merit and distinction grades are awarded for higher-level achievement.

The merit and distinction grade descriptors are for grading the total evidence produced for each unit and describe the student's performance over and above that for a pass grade. They can be achieved in a flexible way, for example: in a sequential or holistic mode, to reflect the nature of the sector.





Meeting Deadlines

Deadlines for assessment are clearly communicated to students from the start, and throughout their programme, and students are made aware of the consequences of failing to meet deadlines. Walsall College staff then have 20 working days to provide feedback for Higher Education programme assessments.

Students are required to adhere to any published dates and deadlines for assessment. Any student who, due to a medical, or another reason outside of their control is unable to complete assessment evidence by or on a set date, should submit a request for extenuating circumstances or an extension.

It is important for students to understand the difference between extensions and extenuating circumstances, and ensure they are requested currently when necessarily. Extensions may be requested if you are unable to submit a piece of coursework by the published deadline due to issues such as illness, injury, bereavement, or the exacerbation of a disability. Extenuating circumstances may be declared to the college if you have experienced any circumstance during your study of programme, which may have affected your ability to perform well in assessments (including essays, class tests and final examinations). With regards to Higher Education students, extenuating circumstances will be recorded and presented at the College HE Assessment Boards.

To request an extension/extenuating circumstance, you will need to complete an Extenuating Circumstances/ Extension Request Form, which can be found within the Extension and Extenuating Circumstances Procedures as part of the Assessment and QA Policy and Procedure.

Where a request for extenuating circumstances or extension has not been submitted and approved, the grade awarded will not be any higher than a pass. If an extension is granted, the new deadline must be recorded and adhered to.

The procedures for the submission and consideration of personal mitigating circumstances are set out in the **Extension and Extenuating Circumstances Procedures**. Students are made aware of these procedures at the start of their programme and are able to access and complete the request forms via the College's Moodle system. This procedure will also outline examples of extenuating circumstances likely to be accepted and rejected.

Internal Verification of Assessment Decisions

Internal Verifiers will sample assessed work from every assignment to check the accuracy of assessment decisions. Internal Verification is undertaken before work is returned to the students.

Communication of Results

All grades for completed units are recorded within Moodle (the college online grading system) enabling students to access their grades at all times, to track their progression and performance through the qualification. Final grades for the award of qualification are communicated to students by their course tutors.

Certificates are either collected in person by the students or posted out to the students by the Examinations team.





Operating Concerns, Complaints and Appeals Processes

A student may appeal against an assessment decision. The College's procedures for the submission and consideration of appeals are set out in the Assessment Appeals Procedure, which forms part of the College Assessment and Quality Assurance Policy.

The governance of HE provisions at Walsall College is overseen by the Senior Management Team (SMT) and the HE Academic Board, both of which are responsible for upholding Academic Standards and the student experience. We have clear policies for appeals through our Assessment Appeals Procedures and for complaints through our Complaints Policy and Procedure. We ensure that students are supported through these processes, and we treat appeals and complaints as opportunities to learn and improve.

Where programmes are delivered with a university partner, students also have access to that institution's appeals and complaints procedures. If a student is not satisfied with the outcome of Walsall College's processes, they have the right to escalate their case to the Office of the Independent Adjudicator (OIA).

All students and staff are made aware of the process that exists to enable students to make an appeal with the College, or directly with Pearson, relating to the external or internally awarded assessment outcomes. The investigation of appeals and complaints provides an important source of feedback for the College, which contributes to the enhancement of the quality of learning opportunities and of processes for maintaining academic standards. Staff and students are made aware of the relevant policies and procedures at induction. Policies and processes for concerns, complaints and appeals are accessible, robust, and inclusive, and enable early resolution wherever possible. Concerns, complaints and appeals policies and procedures, including information about them, are clear and transparent to students, those advising them and those implementing the processes. Formal and informal stages of the processes are clearly articulated.

The College's Complaints Policy and Procedure is managed by the Quality Team. The Assessment Appeals Procedure is distinctive and separate from the Complaints Policy and is managed by curriculum teams. Both policies clearly define stages and indicative timescales. Where internal procedures have been exhausted, the College ensures that the student or complainant is provided with a clear written statement, confirming that its internal procedures have reached completion, outlined the outcome, and advising the student or complainant of any relevant external bodies to contact, should they remain dissatisfied.

Both policies apply to current students, including those on placement or engaged in work-based learning, or on an approved leave of absence; and recent students, giving those who have recently left their programme the opportunity to raise issues of appeal or complaint, within 12 months, after the end of their studies. The College has a system in place to monitor learning points from cases, irrespective of the outcome of the individual case.

Where the College is delivering higher education qualifications, in collaboration with other higher education institutions, the partner institution will provide College staff and students with clear information about their procedures for complaints and appeals. This includes clear signposting to where an appeal or complaint must be directed, and the extent to which the partner institution would





be involved in considering such an appeal or complaint. Students studying on higher education programmes at Walsall College, which are delivered in collaboration with a partner higher education institution, have the right to appeal to that awarding institution, where procedures at the College have been exhausted.

If the complaint relates to a Higher Education (HE) course, the internal College Appeals process has been exhausted (evidenced by a Completion of Procedures (CoP) letter from the College), students can contact the Office of the Independent Adjudicator (OIA). Students can check if their complaint is eligible by visiting their 'Can you complain to us?' page.

You can complain using their online system: 'How to access the online OIA system' or download a Complaint Form. The OIA should send an acknowledgement that they have received the complaint within ten days.

The college meet (where applicable) the national and international requirements of external bodies with responsibility for hearing or overseeing concerns and complaints. Actions resulting from concerns, complaints and appeals are proportionate and enable cases to be resolved as early as possible. Processes for concerns, complaints and appeals are monitored and reviewed to ensure they promote enhancement throughout the college and operate as intended, to the benefit of students and staff. Outcomes from concerns, complaints and appeals are used to develop and enhance teaching and learning and the wider student experience.

Information about Higher Education Provision

We are committed to transparency and accuracy in all of the information we provide. Programme specifications, course information such as module details, policies, procedures, and assessment regulations are made available to students at the start of their studies and are updated annually. Our marketing materials are carefully reviewed for accuracy, and compliance is overseen through our Publication of Information Policy. All information provision is guided by the expectations of the Competition and Markets Authority (CMA), ensuring that prospective and current students can make informed decisions about their education.

Public confidence in higher education relies on public understanding of the achievement represented by higher education qualifications. Walsall College is committed to producing appropriate information about our higher education learning opportunities, which is focused on our intended audiences and stakeholders. Part C is not concerned with the mechanisms used to produce information, nor the media chosen to communicate it, but with the quality of the information in terms of whether it is fit-for-purpose, accessible and trustworthy.

The College is committed to providing information that is fit-for-purpose, accessible and trustworthy. The College assesses this through a cross-reference tool created by the CMA – Competition & Markets Authority - UK higher education providers – which advises on consumer protection law. The College provides prospective students and other interested parties with information on programmes of study before any decision is made about starting a course. This is provided on the College's website, in the prospectus, and other promotional material of the College.





The Head of Sales and Marketing is responsible for the College's CMA Action Plan and Publication of Information Policy and Procedure and therefore is responsible for ensuring that the above information is up-to-date and compliant, via the College website.

The College provides all new students with joining instructions prior to their arrival at the College and, on arrival, the HE Course Handbook and Programme Specifications, containing information on college services and sources of help and advice. This guidance is also available during open days. The College advises all students with a disability, and individual or additional requirements that they should be assessed and supported by the Inclusive Support Team. Students may be entitled to additional arrangements in assessments and support to facilitate study within the resources available. The College provides all staff and students with access to the Academic Regulations and all documents referred to within them.

Information relating to the College's higher education provision is maintained using the College's online SharePoint in the designated area 'Higher Education.'

Curriculum teams maintain a set of current programme specifications and unit specifications alongside all other programme management documentation, verification and tracking systems.

Course teams provide all students registered on a programme with a HE Course Handbook and Programme Specifications at the commencement of the programme. This contains, as a minimum, information on:

- aims and intended learning outcomes of the programme.
- programme structure, including details of core units, optional units, pre-requisite units, and pathways.
- learning, teaching, and assessment methods.
- assessment requirements.
- assessment procedures.
- staff details/sources of help.
- communication with students.

Course teams provide all students with unit information at the commencement of the unit, including:

- The assessment strategy, which should indicate how the learning outcomes will be assessed using assessment methods appropriate to their achievement.
- Submission dates/deadlines.
- Any other assessment requirements
- The dates by which assessment feedback
- The type of assessment feedback to be provided will be provided to students.

The location of the online reading list, and other learning materials and resources.

Course teams remind students that it is each student's own responsibility: (a) to read and understand the information given to them on assessment requirements; (b) to make staff aware of any circumstances affecting their ability to comply with these requirements.





All students are made aware of policies and procedures relating to assessment malpractice, appeals and complaints through a comprehensive student induction programme and clear information within the student handbook.



"Walsall College is uniquely and proudly vocational, delivering technical, professional and community education. Our greatest passion is unleashing the potential of individuals, communities and businesses; our greatest legacy is the talent of our students: skilled, professional and enterprising."









